
 

 

 
 

  

 

General Purposes Committee 
 

Tuesday, 7 September 2010 at 6.30 pm 
Committee Room 3, Brent Town Hall, Forty Lane, 
Wembley, HA9 9HD 
 
 
Membership: 
 
Members first alternates Second alternates 
Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 
   
John (Chair) McLennan Mistry 
Butt (Vice-Chair) Jones Kabir 
Beswick Arnold Mrs Bacchus 
Brown Beck Sneddon 
Long Adeyeye Al-Ebadi 
Lorber Leaman Castle 
Matthews Sneddon Allie 
J Moher Chohan S Choudhary 
HB Patel Colwill BM Patel 
Thomas Van Kalwala Aden 
 
 
For further information contact: Elly Cook, Democratic Services Officer 
020 8937 1358, elly.cook@brent.gov.uk 
 
For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit: 

www.brent.gov.uk/committees 
 
 
The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting 
 

Public Document Pack



 

2 
 

Agenda 
 
Introductions, if appropriate. 
 
Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members 
 

Item Page 
 

1 Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 

 

 Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, any relevant 
financial or other interest in the items on this agenda. 

 

 

2 Minutes of the previous meeting  To follow 
 

3 Matters arising (if any)   
 

4 Deputations (if any)   
 

5 Pension arrangement for staff transferred between contractors  
 

1 - 4 

 On 27th September 2007 the General Purposes Committee agreed the 
council’s policy in respect of pension arrangements for staff transferred to 
provide contracted services to the council. This report proposes an 
amendment to that policy to bring about cost savings and clarity for 
bidders. 

 

 Wards Affected: All Wards; Contact Officer: Duncan McLeod, 
Director of Finance and Corporate 
Resources 

 

   Tel: 020 8937 1424  

   duncan.mcleod@brent.gov.uk  
 

6 Stopping Up Order, South Kilburn Site 3C, Carlton Vale/Kilburn Park 
Road  

 

5 - 18 

 This report seeks authorisation to make a stopping-up order for areas of 
public highway at the junction of Carlton Vale/Kilburn Park Road under 
Section 247 Town and Country Planning Act 1990, in order to carry out 
the development of 133 dwellings at site 3C of the South Kilburn 
Regeneration area. 

 

 Wards Affected: Kilburn; Contact Officer: Richard Saunders, 
Director of Environment and Culture 

 

   Tel: 020 8937 5002  

   richard.saunders@brent.gov.uk  
 



 

3 
 

7 Appointments to Sub-Committees / Outside Bodies   
 

8 Any Other Urgent Business  
 

 

 Notice of items to be raised under this heading must be given in writing to 
the Democratic Services Manager or his representative before the 
meeting in accordance with Standing Order 64 

 

 

9 Date of next meeting  
 

 

 The next scheduled meeting of the General Purposes Committee is 
Tuesday 25 January 2011. However, additional meetings of the 
Committee will be convened if business requires this. 

 

 
 

� Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting. 
• The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 

members of the public. 
• Toilets are available on the second floor. 
• Catering facilities can be found on the first floor near The Paul Daisley 

Hall. 
• A public telephone is located in the foyer on the ground floor, opposite the 

Porters’ Lodge 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 
 

 

General Purposes Committee 
7 September 2010 

Report to the Director of 
Finance and Corporate Resources 

 
For Action 
 

  
Wards Affected: All 

 

Pension arrangement for staff transferred between 
contractors 

 
 

1.0 Summary 
 

1.1 On 27th September 2007 the General Purposes Committee agreed the 
Council’s policy in respect of pension arrangements for staff transferred to 
provide contracted services to the council. This report proposes an 
amendment to that policy to bring about cost savings and clarity for bidders. 

 
 2.0 Recommendations 
 

2.1 That members agree the amendment to the council’s policy as set out in 
paragraph 3.6 concerning the pension arrangements for former council staff 
who transfer pursuant to the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 
Employment) Regulations 2006 from an existing contractor providing services 
to the Council to a successor contractor. 

 
3.0 Detail 
 
3.1 On the 27th June 2007 the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 

Government issued a direction under section 101 of the Local Government 
Act 2003. That direction entitled The Best Value Authorities Staff Transfers 
(Pension) Direction 2007 (the “2007 Direction”) placed a legal obligation on 
the council to secure pension protection for employees. The protection applies 
where the whole or part of a service is outsourced on or after 1st October 2007 
and that protection applies to: 

 
(i) staff who are transferred under the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 

Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE) from the council to a contractor 
as a result of the outsourcing (a “first generation outsourcing”); and  
 

(ii) former council staff who are transferred under TUPE from an incumbent 
contractor to a successor contractor as a result of a retender of a council 
service (a “second or subsequent generation outsourcing”). 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



 
 

 

 
3.2 A report to the General Purposes Committee dated 27 September 2007 led to 

Members agreeing the council’s policy in connection with the securing of a 
pension scheme for former Council staff in relation to both first and second 
and subsequent generation outsourcing.  With regard to second generation 
outsourcing, in summary Members agreed a policy whereby the council would 
ensure that any contract with a new contractor must: 
 
(a) require the new contractor to ensure there is made available to 

employees:- 
 

(i) who originally transferred from the Council under TUPE when the 
service was outsourced; and 

 
(ii) who have transferred between contractors and/or subcontractors 

under TUPE each time the contract for the service has been 
retendered; and 

 
(iii) who transfer under TUPE to the new contractor or a subcontractor 

as a result of the retendering of the contract  
 

a pension scheme which is either the same as, counts as broadly 
comparable to or counts as better than the pension scheme made 
available to them by their current employer. Except in exceptional 
circumstances, the contract must also require the contractor to ensure 
there is made available to these employees either access to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (“LGPS”) or an alternative pension 
scheme which is at least broadly comparable to the LGPS. If there are 
exceptional circumstances justifying the Council not requiring an 
alternative pension scheme to the LGPS being offered by the 
contractor to be broadly comparable to the LGPS, then the contract 
must require the alternative pension scheme to be one the Council 
considers of good quality and the contractor to offer appropriate 
compensation to any of these employees who will be disadvantaged by 
the alternative pension scheme. 

 
(b) allow the transferring former Council employees to enforce these 

contractual requirements against the new contractor. 
 

Members also agreed that in relation to second generation outsourcing, the 
Director of Finance and Corporate Resources was authorised to decide, 
whether there are exceptional circumstances justifying the Council not 
requiring in the contract either access to the LGPS or an alternative pension 
scheme which is at least broadly comparable to the LGPS. 

 
3.3 Whilst the policy adopted for second and subsequent generation outsourcings 

required the contractor to ensure there is made available to former council 
employees either access to the LGPS or an alternative pension scheme at 
least broadly comparable to the LGPS, the 2007 Direction requires that the 
transferred staff will, under the successor organisation, have access to a 
pension scheme that is broadly comparable to the scheme offered by the 
incumbent. Current council policy therefore imposes a more stringent 
requirement than that imposed by the 2007 Direction though there is 

Page 2



 
 

 

discretion for the Director of Finance and Corporate Resources to depart from 
this in exceptional circumstances.  

 
3.4 Officers have encountered the situation that the outgoing contractor’s pension 

scheme is not broadly comparable to the current LGPS and as such the 
successor contractor is likely to incur more expense in providing a scheme 
that is better than the outgoing contractor’s scheme in order to ensure broad 
comparability with the current LGPS. The corollary may be that bidders will 
increase their contract cost to accommodate the enhanced pension 
protection.  

 
3.5 To avoid potential additional cost, ensure that procurement exercises run 

more smoothly Members are asked to agree an amendment to the council’s 
policy in respect of second and subsequent generation outsourcings as set 
out in paragraph 3.6. Members are reminded that the proposed amendment is 
compliant with the 2007 Direction which requires as a minimum that the staff 
have access to a scheme that is broadly comparable to the pension scheme 
provided by their current employer. 
 

3.6 Members are also asked to agree that where the whole or part of a Council 
service is transferred by the retendering of a contract and the contract with the 
new contractor is entered into by the Council after 30th September 2007, the 
contract must: 
 
(a) require the new contractor to ensure there is made available to 

employees:- 
 

(i) who originally transferred from the Council under TUPE when the 
service was outsourced; and 

 
(ii) who have transferred between contractors and/or subcontractors 

under TUPE each time the contract for the service has been 
retendered; and 

 
(iii) who transfer under TUPE to the new contractor or a subcontractor 

as a result of the retendering of the contract  
 

a pension scheme which is either the same as, counts as broadly 
comparable to or counts as better than the pension scheme made 
available to them by their current employer.  

 
(b) allow the transferring former Council employees to enforce these 

contractual requirements against the new contractor. 
 
 

4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 The financial implications are provided in the detail of this report. 
 
 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 The legal implications are provided in the detail of this report. 

Page 3



 
 

 

 
 
6.0 Diversity Implications 
 
6.1 Officers have considered this report and there are no diversity implications 

arising from it 
 
 

7. Background Papers 
 

7.1 The direction order made by the Secretary of State under regulation 101 of 
the Local Government Act on 27th June 2007. 

 
7.2 The report “Pension Implications for transferred staff” to the General Purposes 

Committee 27th September 2007.  
 
 
 
Contact Officers 
 
Andy Gray   Pensions Manager x3900 
 
 
 
 
Duncan Mcleod  
Director of Finance and Corporate Resources 

Page 4



 
Meeting General Purposes Committee 
Date 7th September 2010 

Version no.2 
Date 16.08.2010  

 
 

  

 
General Purposes Committee 

7 September 2010 

Report from the Director of 
Environment and Culture 

For Action 
 

  
Wards Affected: Kilburn 

 

Stopping Up Order, South Kilburn Site 3C, Carlton 
Vale/Kilburn Park Road 

 
  
1.0 Summary 

 
1.1 This report seeks authorisation to make a stopping-up order for areas of 

 public highway at the junction of Carlton Vale/Kilburn Park Road under 
Section 247 Town and Country Planning Act 1990, in order to carry out the 
development of 133 dwellings at site 3C of the South Kilburn Regeneration 
area.  

 
 2.0 Recommendations 
 

2.1 That Members note that a Stopping-up order was advertised in accordance  
 with the requirements of Section 247, and the one objection received was 
 referred to the Mayor of London, who has resolved that an Inquiry is not  
 required and that Brent Council can proceed with the Order. 
  

 
2.2 That the Stopping-up order under S247 Town and Country Planning Act be 

approved and duly made and advertised. 
 

3.0 Detail 
 
3.1 Planning consent was received for the development of 133 dwellings at site 

3C of the South Kilburn Regeneration area following the Planning committee 
of 24 February 2010.  The development was designed to make use of areas 
of highway which would be redundant upon the construction of a re-configured 
signal junction at Carlton Vale/Kilburn Park Road 

 
3.2 A Stopping-up order was duly prepared and advertised under Section 247 of  
 the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to enable the redevelopment to take  
 place.  A copy of the order is attached at Appendix 1 together with a plan  
 showing the proposed area to be stopped-up, which includes an existing  

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



 
Meeting General Purposes Committee 
Date 7th September 2010 

Version no.2 
Date 16.08.2010  

 
 

 footbridge and ramps at Carlton Vale. 
 
3.3 Currently the junction comprises a signal installation at the intersection of  
 Carlton Vale. Kilburn Park Road with a gyratory system to the south west of  
 the signals.  The gyratory, in effect, provides the ability of traffic to approach  

 the junction southbound on Kilburn Park Road, traverse the gyratory and       
enter Carlton Vale eastbound.  This southbound to eastbound manoeuvre 
cannot take place at the signals due to the restrictive geometry of the site and 
the consequential prohibition of the left turn.  The gyratory also provides a 
‘slip’ for northbound traffic on Kilburn Park Road to enter Carlton Vale 
westbound without passing through the signal junction. 
 

3.4 The Council’s consultant engineers have designed a fully signalised junction 
which provides for all movements except the left turn into Carlton Vale 
eastbound.  This manoeuvre is extremely low volume and can be 
accommodated by other local routing.  The capacity of the junction will 
support the development of site 3C and a considerable amount of further 
regeneration in the South Kilburn area.  Traffic assessments of future phases 
will necessarily assess the impact on a signal junction which is now proposed. 
 

3.5 Transport for London has assessed the Council’s proposals as having no 
significant impact on the strategic network, and their signals unit has approved 
the Council’s signal junction design. 

 
3.6 The Council’s advertised Stopping-up order received an objection from the 

City Commissioner of Transportation on behalf of the City of Westminster and 
dated 11th May 2010.  The salient concerns raised were: 

  
(a) The Highway Act 1980 required Brent to consult with neighbouring 

highway authorities. 
(b) The City of Westminster Highways Planning Team who commented on 

Brent’s planning application did not raise an objection, but concerns 
remain about the wider regeneration and its impact on the junction. 

(c) The traffic figures of saturation were very close to being unacceptable. 
(d) The Transport Assessment had been amended from an earlier version. 
(e) What were Transport for London’s views on the junction? 
(f) Parking controls for Westminster residents would need to be reviewed 

by Westminster’s officers. 
 

3.7 Upon receipt of the objection, a letter dated 25th May 2010 was sent to City of 
Westminster explaining the rationale of the Council’s proposals and fully 
addressing the concerns raised. Westminster were not willing to withdraw 
their objection.  At expiry of the objection period, and on legal advice, this 
single letter of objection, together with the Council’s response was sent to the 
Mayor of London for resolution. 

 
3.8 The Mayor of London considered the objection and resolved that an Inquiry 

was not required and that the Council could proceed to make the Stopping-up 
order.  His letter of confirmation is attached at Appendix 2. 

 

Page 6



 
Meeting General Purposes Committee 
Date 7th September 2010 

Version no.2 
Date 16.08.2010  

 
 

3.9 Members are now requested to approve the making of the Stopping-up order 
in order to proceed with the development. 

 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 The project is fully funded from Housing services which are sufficient to meet 

the costs of Stopping-up the highway, and constructing the new signalised 
junction in accordance with the planning consent.  
 

5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 Officers have taken the Council’s legal advice in all aspects of the promotion 

of the Stopping-up order.  The making of the order is not open to further 
objection by the public or other authorities. 

 
6.0 Diversity Implications 
 
6.1 The new junction has been designed to provide pedestrians with enhanced at-

grade pedestrian crossing facilities, in preference to the footbridge which is 
not favoured by the disabled, or those with pushchairs or heavy loads.  The 
junction works have been designed to compliment further traffic calming work 
on Carlton Vale to the west of the site, which will give additional priority to 
pedestrian and cyclists. 
 

7.0 Staffing/Accommodation Implications (if appropriate) 
 

7.1 None specific.  The Stopping-up order, and the proposed junction works will 
be delivered by the Transportation Service Unit. 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
Correspondence on Transportation File, TSU96109 
Planning Committee, 24 February 2010, Agenda item No.13,Case No.09/2500 
 
Contact Officers 
 
Phil Rankmore, Transportation Service Unit 
Richard Saunders, Director of Environment and Culture 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



 
Meeting General Purposes Committee 
Date 7th September 2010 

Version no.2 
Date 16.08.2010  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 
 
 
                                    The advertised stopping-up order 

Page 8



 
Meeting General Purposes Committee 
Date 7th September 2010 

Version no.2 
Date 16.08.2010  

 
 Page 9



 
Meeting General Purposes Committee 
Date 7th September 2010 

Version no.2 
Date 16.08.2010  

 
 Page 10



 
Meeting General Purposes Committee 
Date 7th September 2010 

Version no.2 
Date 16.08.2010  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 
Meeting General Purposes Committee 
Date 7th September 2010 

Version no.2 
Date 16.08.2010  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 2 
 
 
 

Page 12



 
Meeting General Purposes Committee 
Date 7th September 2010 

Version no.2 
Date 16.08.2010  

 
 Page 13



 
Meeting General Purposes Committee 
Date 7th September 2010 

Version no.2 
Date 16.08.2010  

 
 Page 14



 
Meeting General Purposes Committee 
Date 7th September 2010 

Version no.2 
Date 16.08.2010  

 
 Page 15



 
Meeting General Purposes Committee 
Date 7th September 2010 

Version no.2 
Date 16.08.2010  

 
 Page 16



 
Meeting General Purposes Committee 
Date 7th September 2010 

Version no.2 
Date 16.08.2010  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 
Meeting General Purposes Committee 
Date 7th September 2010 

Version no.2 
Date 16.08.2010  

 
 

 

Page 18


	Agenda
	5 Pension arrangement for staff transferred between contractors
	6 Stopping Up Order, South Kilburn Site 3C, Carlton Vale/Kilburn Park Road

